APPROVED/BOARD OF FINANCE MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY MARCH 20, 2007

A regular meeting of the Board of Finance was held on Tuesday, March 20, 2007 in the lower
conference room in Town Hall at 7:30 p.m..

Members Present:

Town Officials:
Guests:

Marty Heiser, Chairman; Kevin Walsh, Vice Chairman; David Ulmer,
Peter Gomez and Glenn Cordelli

Jay Wahlberg, Controller; Jane Berendsen-Hill, Tax Collector
Dave Campbell, Pension Commission; Bill Whelan; Pension Commission

AGENDA

Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes
Tax Collector’s Report & Annual Interest Rate Approval

¢ Pension Discussion — Dave Campbell, Chairman

+—Ridgefield Economic Development—Rebert-Cascella

Discussion on Internal Auditor — Kevin Walsh
Controller’s Report:

o Financial Review

o Transfers
Review of Budget Deliberation Dates
Old Business

o New Business

o Communications & Correspondence
Adjournment

Mr. Heiser called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion was made by Mr. Heiser and seconded by Mr. Walsh to approve the February 13, 2007
Board of Finance Minutes with corrections. Vote: 5-0. Motion APPROVED.

Board of Finance Minutes 3/20/07 Page 1 of 7



A motion was made by Mr. Heiser and seconded by Mr. Walsh to approve the March 30, 2006
and the September 19, 2006 Board of Finance Minutes as presented. Vote: 5-0. Motion
APPROVED.

TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT & ANNUAL INTEREST RATE APPROVAL

TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT (§ in

millions)
Prior YTD
%| as %
BUDGE Q1 Q2 Jan| Feb.,| Y-T-D Cllctd| of Actual
T
Current Taxes $ 98.1$30.8/$25.0/$17.6(% 2.2|§ 755 76.98%| 75.88%
Supplemental $ 0.8 $ -1$ 06% 01($ 0.7 87.53%| 81.34%
MV
Prior Year $ 0.5$02($02($ -|$ -|$ 04 83.68%| 77.52%
Cllctns
Int. & Lien Fees $ 03$01/$01($ -8 -($ 03 88.55%| 61.28%
s of 2/28/07 $ 99.8/$31.11$25.2|$183($ 2.4|% 769 77.13%| 76.59%

Mr. Ulmer ran a ten-year average on the tax collection rate and found it to be 98.69% for current-
year collections which includes all the deferred taxes as well. Mr. Ulmer expressed his opinion
that raising the percentage rate will be problematic because rating agencies really scrutinize
whether or not the municipality makes its collection rate and falling short hurts.

Mrs. Berendsen-Hill said she intends to turn over another year’s past-due motor vehicle taxes to
the collection agency in the spring. She added: “I always keep the current two years because
we have a two-year car registration cycle.” Mr. Gomez asked if that practice is consistent with
other area tax collectors and Mrs. Berendsen-Hill said some tax collectors wait four years, while
others send delinquents to collection right away.

Mr. Heiser asked about conveyance taxes and Mrs. Berendsen-Hill said they came under the
Town Clerk’s rubric but she speculated that they would not reach the budgeted $1.2MM.

Mrs. Berendsen-Hill suggested the BOF maintain the current 4% tax-deferment interest rate
which, as it is phrased in the Town Ordinance, approximates the Town’s borrowing rate.

PENSION DISCUSSION

Mr. Campbell said the Town underfunded the pension fund again this year. The Pension
Committee requested $1.3MM and the Town budgeted $1.2MM. He noted that the actuary’s
recommended amount is always the mid point.

Board of Finance Minutes 3/20/07 Page 2 of 7



Mr. Ulmer noted that the BOF put in $115k. Mr. Campbell acknowledged that and said that was
great and the Pension Committee hopes the BOF will be in a position to do the same thing this

year. Mr. Campbell said the pension fund is the best investment around, the arbitrage (positive)
is always there.

Mr. Walsh asked about how the additional health-care funding requirements in 08/09 would be
handled, and Mr. Wahlberg said he had just met with one actuarial agency and they do not know
what the requirement is going to be. Mr. Wahlberg said he would like to see the Town fund it
like the pensions and have the pension committee take on that responsibility. Mr. Campbell said
the Pension Committee would love to be involved. Mr. Walsh asked what actuarial service was
used and Mr. Wahlberg said that Dave Leonard was not prepared to take on this actuarial study
so the Town is looking at three other firms. He noted the exposure seems to be at the Board of
Education for certified teachers. Mr. Wahlberg said the obligation would be funded currently so
the Town doesn’t have a huge liability on the Balance Sheet, which is what will happen if the
Town does nothing.

Mr. Wahlberg said he hoped to get an RFP in the next thirty days for the police and fire
departments which are the only obligations at the present time. Mr. Wahlberg said he was
surprised by the BOE exposure. He noted that BOE retired employees do contribute substantially
to their health care costs.

Mr. Campbell said the actuary adjusts the assumptions every year. If the Pension Commission
knows of any contractual changes it asks the actuary to put them in the mix. The salary numbers
used in the current year are the previous-year’s numbers. Mr. Ulmer asked if they assume an
increase in the number of participants and Mr. Campbell said: “No. The process should be, if
you know about a new department or a new negotiation it should be costed and included but now
it gets picked up in the next year’s calculation.”

M. Ulmer said the table on the fund performance did not indicate how the funds performed.

Mr. Campbell shared the Pension Committee’s professionally-produced Performance
Measurement Report as of December 31, 2006. He said the long-term growth over ten years was
approximatly 9%. Last year the pension fund’s growth was just under 13% for the calendar year.
He said the investments have international diversification, but they don’t include hedge funds
because they are too expensive.

M. Ulmer asked if we know of any union increases coming up and Mr. Campbell responded that
the HR director says nothing is hot.

Mr. Heiser asked if the Police Pension Fund is considered a rich fund and Mr. Campbell
responded that it is the most expensive plan in Town with the Fire Department’s fund being #2.

Board of Finance Minutes 3/20/07 Page 3 of 7



CONTROLLER’S REPORT

Transfer #200704

WHEREAS, the Finance Department has calculated a shortfall in utility electric budget due to
recent increases. :

WHEREAS, C.L.& P. has recently refunded the Town $197,969 in over charges for street lights.

THEREFORE, the Finance Department is requesting approval for additional funds of $100,095
to cover the shortfall in electric rates with a corresponding increase in revenue estimate.

INCREASE:
00000-00000 VARIOUS $100,095
INCREASE:
10907-44900 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  $100,095

A motion was made by Mr. Heiser and seconded by Mr. Gomez to approve Transfer #200704.
Vote: 5-0. Motion APPROVED. "

Mr. Wahlberg said the DPUC found that electric rates were in excess of the true costs and the
Courts upheld the settlement which, at the Town’s option was paid in one lump sum. Mr.
Wahlberg said the Town received $48k for something last. week he was not sure what it was.
He said the other $97k remains in the General Fund.

The BOF reviewed utility costs. Mr. Wahlberg noted that the new electric golf carts use a lot of
electricity and the Town did not calculate that upfront. Parks & Recreation’s new garage
building also is an added utility cost. Mr. Wahlberg said the first big increase in fuel costs came
as a result of Katrina and were supposed to be temporary, but Katrina came and went and the
rates have not come down. The Town is currently looking at CCM and another company to be a
power broker. He is meeting with people next week willing to offer the Town a five-year
contract on power.

DISCUSSION ON INTERNAL AUDITOR — KEVIN WALSH

Transfer #200705

WHEREAS, The Finance Department has been asked by the Board of Selectmen to fund the
Board of Finance request for an Internal Auditor. The Board of Finance would like an
appropriation of $50,000 to commence said program.

Board of Finance Minutes 3/20/07 Page 4 of 7



Board of Selectmen and the Board of Finance. Mr. Gomez said the actual direction and legal
contract defining the project would be best coming from the Board of Finance. Mr. Walsh
indicated he recalled suggesting that the BOS could adopt a committee similar to the pension
committee.

DUVLLIVGE WU LWV ULLILALWALSE v J~mmaw = = ——e———e

Mr. Tyrell, who had attended the Board of Selectman’s meeting, said that what Kevin (Walsh)
and Peter (Gomez) proposed, the Board of Selectmen clearly did not give them. “You guys were
not given the final authority to say what the auditors would look at.” Mr. Walsh said the BOS
voted on the issue after Mr. Tyrell left the meeting.

Mr. Gomez said there was clearly some debate about it. Mr. Gomez said the final product would
be delivered to the Audit Committee and the BOF would have the “heavier say” in the selection
of the auditors.

Mr. Ulmer noted that the funds came from the settlement (bus) money.

Mr. Wahlberg brought Transfer #200706 (increased professional services $6,558.00 caused by
additional work performed by the auditors at the BOF’s request) to the Board of Finance’s

attention and noted that it first has to go to the Board of Selectmen.

Mr. Walsh said the next action step would be to consider which areas of interest there may be for
an extended audit. Mr. Ulmer said that pending budget discussions with the various Town

Board of Finance Minutes 3/20/07 Page 5 of 7









